
PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, June 04, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Call to order 

2. Attendance 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes - March 5, 2020 

Requests 
5. Request by Jimmy O'Dell for a side yard setback variance at 308 East River Bend Drive. 

Presently zoned R-1R. [Map 119B, Parcel 183, District 3].  

6. Request by Garry & Nina Lassiter for a side yard setback variance at 153 Hoot Owl Lane. 

Presently zoned R-1R. [Map 096A, Parcel 008, District 3].  

7. Request by Gregory Leepow, agent for Kim Anderson for a rear yard setback variance at 

112 Sinclair Circle. Presently zoned R-2. [Map 112B, Parcel 003, District 4].  

8. Request by Kevin & Kristy Slaughter for a side yard setback variance at 1051 Crooked 

Creek Road. Presently zoned R-1. [Map 110B, Parcel 105, District 3].  

9. Request by Mark Smith, agent for Mary Wooten for a rear yard setback variance at 147 

Collis Marina Road. Presently zoned RM-2. [Map 104B, Parcel 012, District 3].  

10. Request by Mark Smith, agent for Duke Gibbs for a side and rear yard setback variance at 

145 Collis Marina Road. Presently zoned RM-2. [Map 104B, Parcel 011, District 3].  

11. Request by Jim Brown, agent for Wondal Perry for a rear yard setback variance at 202 

Long Island Drive. Presently zoned R-1R. [Map 122A, Parcel 064, District 3].  

12. Request by Jason Sells, agent for Interfor U.S. Inc for a front yard setback variance at 370 

Dennis Station Road. Presently zoned I-M. [Map 059, Parcel 019, District 4].  

13. Request by Vincent Richardson for a front yard setback variance at 114 Allens Alley. 

Presently zoned R-2. [Map 055A, Parcel 011, District 4].  

14. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek 

Holding's LLC to rezone 2.14 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 

030, District 3]. * 

15. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Lick Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 21.40 

acres on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032001, District 3]. * 

16. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Mallard's Overlook, LLC to rezone 29.58 

acres on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, District 3]. * 

17. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek 

Holding's LLC to rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 

033, District 3]. * 

18. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC to rezone 0.63 

acres/27,298 sq. ft. on Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, Parcel 001, District 3]. * 

 

New Business 
Adjournment 

 
 

1



The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in 

the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event 

the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members 

of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of 

the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established 

in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 

706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

2



File Attachments for Item:

4. Approval of Minutes - March 5, 2020

3



 

 

Draft Minutes 

March 5, 2020 

   PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Minutes 

 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday March 

05, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 
 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Marshall called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Attendance 

Mr. Jonathan Gladden called the roll. 

 

PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 

Vice Chairperson Tim Pierson 

Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 

Member Martha Farley 

Member Joel Hardie 

 

STAFF: 

Lisa Jackson 

Courtney Andrews 

Jonathan Gladden 

Adam Nelson, Putnam County Attorney 

 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Ms. Courtney Andrews read the Rules of Procedures. 

 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes – February 11, 2020 P&Z Meeting 

 

Motion to approve the February 11, 2020 Minutes made by Member Hardie, Seconded by 

Vice Chairperson Pierson  

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice Chairperson Pierson, Member Hill, Member 

Farley, Member Hardie 

 

Requests  

5. Request Ronnie & Lynn Smith for a side yard setback variance at 108 Sunset Drive. 

Presently zoned R-2. [Map 053B, Parcel 056, District 4]. Mrs. Smith represented this 

request. She stated that she talked with Southland Homes about building a home on this .56-

acre lot. Towards the front of the property, the width is only about 34 ft wide and widens 

towards the lake. The width of the home is 44 ft wide, the depth is 39 ft, and the width of the 

lot measures 65.5. In order to get the width of the home to fit on the property and allow for 

4



 

 

Draft Minutes 

March 5, 2020 

the septic tank, the house would need to be positioned 175 ft from the lake. No one spoke in 

opposition of this request. 

  

Staff recommendation is for approval of a 10-foot side yard setback variance, being 10 

feet from the left and right-side property line when facing the lake at 108 Sunset Drive 

[Map 053B, Parcel 056, District 4]. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Ronnie & Lynn Smith for a side yard setback variance, 

being 10 feet from the left and right-side property line when facing the lake at 108 Sunset 

Drive made by Member Hardie, Seconded by Member Farley 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice Chairperson Pierson, Member Hill, Member 

Farley, Member Hardie 

 

6. Request by William Wilkinson. for a side yard setback variance at 163 Lakemore Drive. 

Presently zoned R-1. [Map 103A, Parcel 001, District 3]. The applicant is requesting to 

withdraw without prejudice. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval to withdraw without prejudice at 163 Lakemore 

Drive [Map 103A, Parcel 001, District 3]. 

 

Motion to approve the request by William Wilkinson to withdraw without prejudice at 163 

Lakemore Drive made by Vice Chairperson Pierson, Seconded by Member Hardie  

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice Chairperson Pierson, Member Hill, Member 

Farley, Member Hardie 

 

7. Request by Jerry & Lisa Collins for a side yard setback variance at 160 A. Oak Lane. 

Presently zoned R-2. [Map 056C, Parcel 020, District 4]. Mr. Jerry Collins represented this 

request. He stated that the property is very narrow and measures 44 feet wide at the roadside. 

He added that the location where the home must be placed, due to the existing septic system, 

measures 49 feet wide. The original home they looked at purchasing was going to be 28 feet 

in width. They are now purchasing a 24-foot-wide manufactured home. He stated that he and 

his wife own this property and after speaking with staff, they would like to accept the staff 

recommendation. No one spoke in opposition of this request.  

 

Although the applicants are seeking a 15-foot side yard setback variance, being 5 feet 

from both the left and right side property line when facing the lake, staff 

recommendation is for approval of a 10-foot side yard setback variance, being 10 feet 

from the right-side property line when facing the lake, and a 12 foot side yard setback 

variance, being 8 feet from the left side property line when facing the lake at 160 A Oak 

Lane [Map 056C, Parcel 020, District 4]. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Jerry & Lisa Collins, per staff recommendation, of a 10-

foot side yard setback variance, being 10 feet from the right-side property line when facing 

the lake, and a 12 foot side yard setback variance, being 8 feet from the left side property line 

when facing the lake at 160 A Oak Lane made by Member Hardie, Seconded by Member 

Hill 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice Chairperson Pierson, Member Hill, Member 

Farley, Member Hardie 

5



 

 

Draft Minutes 

March 5, 2020 

Ms. Jackson stated that items 8-12 have been postponed. Chairman Marshall stated that 

since this was an administrative action, the Planning & Zoning Board did not have to 

vote. 

 

8. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek 

Holding's LLC to rezone 2.14 acres at Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 

030, District 3]. * Item postponed. 

9. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Lick Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 21.40 

acres at Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032001, District 3]. * Item 

postponed. 

10. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Mallard's Overlook, LLC to rezone 29.58 acres 

at Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, District 3]. * Item postponed. 

11. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek 

Holding's LLC to rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 

033, District 3]. * Item postponed. 

12. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC to rezone 0.63 acres on 

Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, Parcel 001, District 3]. * Item postponed. 

 

New Business 

None 

Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting made by Member Hardie, Seconded by Member Farley 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice Chairperson Pierson, Member Hill, Member 

Farley, Member Hardie 

 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:43 p.m. 

 

 
 

Attest: 

 

 
 

________________________________   ___________________________________ 

Lisa Jackson      James Marshall, Jr. 

Director      Chairman 

6



File Attachments for Item:

5. Request by Jimmy O'Dell for a side yard setback variance at 308 East River Bend Drive. Presently 

zoned R-1R. [Map 119B, Parcel 183, District 3].

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

5. Request by Jimmy O'Dell for a side yard setback variance at 308 East River Bend Drive. 

Presently zoned R-1R. [Map 119B, Parcel 183, District 3]. The applicant is requesting a 

9-foot side yard setback variance, being 11 feet from the left side property line. He would 

like to construct a 192 square foot storage shed on the left side of the house.  The septic 

system expands across the rear yard leaving no room for improvement and the house is 13 

feet room the adjacent side property line.  Moreover, there are no other accessory 

structures located on the property.  Due to the location of the existing home, septic tank 

and drain lines, there are no other options for the placement of the proposed structure. 

Therefore, this request meets the conditions as stated in Putnam County, Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 66-157(c)(1). 

 

 Staff recommendation is for approval of a 9-foot side yard setback variance, being 11 

feet from the left side property line at 308 East River Bend Drive [Map 119B, Parcel 

183, District 3].  

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

21



 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

22



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by Garry & Nina Lassiter for a side yard setback variance at 153 Hoot Owl Lane. Presently 

zoned R-1R. [Map 096A, Parcel 008, District 3].

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

  

6. Request by Garry & Nina Lassiter for a side yard setback variance at 153 Hoot Owl 

Lane. Presently zoned R-1R. [Map 096A, Parcel 008, District 3]. The applicants are 

requesting a 10-foot side yard setback variance, being 10 feet from the left side property 

line to construct a 297 addition to his existing 862 square foot garage. This is long lot 

measuring 457.79 feet in length. It has a lot width at building setback of 116 feet. Staff 

measured the location of the current garage being 24 ft from the left side property line. 

Upon careful observation and measuring of the proposal, staff concluded that the proposed 

structure could be relocated to the side of the garage. Moreover, this would keep the 

proposed addition in line with the current garage footprint and meet the required setbacks. 

Therefore, this request does not meet the conditions as stated in Putnam County, Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 66-157(c)(1) with an alternate recommendation from staff. 

 

 Staff recommendation is for denial at 153 Hoot Owl lane [Map 096A, Parcel 008, 

District 3]. 

  

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

37



 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

38



File Attachments for Item:

7. Request by Gregory Leepow, agent for Kim Anderson for a rear yard setback variance at 112 Sinclair 

Circle. Presently zoned R-2. [Map 112B, Parcel 003, District 4].

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

7. Request by Gregory Leepow, agent for Kim Anderson for a rear yard setback variance 

at 112 Sinclair Circle. Presently zoned R-2. [Map 112B, Parcel 003, District 4]. The 

applicants are requesting a 51.8-foot rear yard setback variance, being 48.2 feet from the 

nearest point to the lake. They would like to convert the existing deck into living space. 

This would bring the nonconforming 975 square foot home up to the required minimum of 

1,000 heated square feet as stated in Putnam County, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66-85 

(g). The applicants are also requesting to add a deck on each side of the remodel. Both 

decks would not exceed the current footprint of the home. The lot is 235.5 feet in length 

and has a lot width at building setback of 178.3 feet. Staff carefully assessed the location 

of the current home, septic system and drain fields, as well as the location of the proposed 

structures. Although this is a conforming lot, the current home sits exactly 48.2 feet from 

the nearest point to the lake. The septic system and drain lines are located in front of the 

home making it difficult to make improvements to the property. Due to the location of the 

current home, septic system and drain fields, a variance is needed for further development 

of this lot. Therefore, this request meets the conditions as stated in Putnam County, Code 

of Ordinances, Chapter 66-157(c)(1)(2). 

 

 Staff recommendation is for approval of a 51.8-foot rear yard setback variance, being 

48.2 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 112 Sinclair Circle [Map 112B, Parcel 

003, District 4]. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

55



The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

56



File Attachments for Item:

8. Request by Kevin & Kristy Slaughter for a side yard setback variance at 1051 Crooked Creek Road. 

Presently zoned R-1. [Map 110B, Parcel 105, District 3].

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

8.   Request by Kevin & Kristy Slaughter for a side yard setback variance at 1051 Crooked 

Creek Road. Presently zoned R-1. [Map 110B, Parcel 105, District 3]. The applicants are 

requesting a 30-foot side yard setback variance being 70 feet from the nearest point to the 

lake. They would like to construct a 600 square foot workshop. This is a uniquely shaped 

lot with a lot length of 328.52 and a lot width at building setback of 150. This lot abuts the 

lake on both the left and rear side, when facing the lake. The left side of the property has 

heavy topography and slopes downward towards the lake. Staff assessed the property and 

noticed that the contour of the lake affects the property tremendously. Due to the contour 

of the lake, the proposed location is the only option for this request. Therefore, this request 

meets the conditions as stated in Putnam County, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66-

157(c)(1)(2). 

 

 Staff recommendation is for approval of a 30-foot rear yard setback variance, being 

70 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 1051 Crooked Creek Road [Map 110B, 

Parcel 105, District 3]. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

71



The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

72



File Attachments for Item:

9. Request by Mark Smith, agent for Mary Wooten for a rear yard setback variance at 147 Collis Marina

Road. Presently zoned RM-2. [Map 104B, Parcel 012, District 3].

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

9. Request by Mark Smith, agent for Mary Wooten for a rear yard setback variance at 147 

Collis Marina Road. Presently zoned RM-2. [Map 104B, Parcel 012, District 3]. The 

applicant is requesting a 35-foot rear yard setback variance, being 65 feet from the nearest 

point to the lake. They would like to combine this property with the adjacent lot to build 

two 5-unit buildings. The buildings would be a total of 10,800 square feet each. This lot is 

unique in its shape, and measures 570 feet in length with the lot width at building setback 

of 100 feet. The 35-foot variance will allow proper access to the proposed units and meet 

the 30-foot front yard setback minimum. Staff assessed the property and due to the unique 

shape of this lot, discovered that the proposed location was the best option for this request 

Therefore, this request meets the conditions as stated in Putnam County, Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 66-157(c)(1). 

 

 Staff recommendation is for approval of a 35-foot rear yard setback variance, being 

65 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 147 Collis Marina Road [Map 104B, 

Parcel 012, District 3]. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

87



The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

88



File Attachments for Item:

10. Request by Mark Smith, agent for Duke Gibbs for a side and rear yard setback variance at 145 Collis 

Marina Road. Presently zoned RM-2. [Map 104B, Parcel 011, District 3].

89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

10. Request by Mark Smith, agent for Duke Gibbs for a side and rear yard setback variance 

at 145 Collis Marina Road. Presently zoned RM-2. [Map 104B, Parcel 011, District 

3]. The applicant is requesting a 35-foot rear yard setback variance, being 65 feet from the 

nearest point to the lake. He is also requesting a 10-foot side yard setback variance, being 

10 feet from the left side property line when facing the lake. He would like to combine this 

property with the adjacent lot to build two 5-unit buildings. The buildings would be a total 

of 10,800 square feet each. This lot is unique in its shape and measures 570 feet in length 

and has a lot width at building setback of 100 feet. The 35-foot variance will allow proper 

access to the proposed units and meet the 30-foot front yard setback minimum.  In 

reference to the 10-foot side yard variance, the subject property abuts an R-1 residential 

property and due to the of the character of an R-M development, it is staff’s opinion that 

the 20-foot side yard setback should be adhered to when possible. Therefore, staff suggest 

that the applicant consider repositioning the building or reduce the number of proposed 

units to accommodate the side yard setback.  However, due to the unique shape of the two 

parcels along with the limited buildable area, a rear yard setback is needed.  Therefore, this 

request meets the conditions as stated in Putnam County, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66-

157(c)(1). 

 

 Although the applicants are seeking a 10-foot side yard setback variance, being 10 

feet from the left side property line when facing the lake, and a 35-foot rear yard 

setback variance being 65 feet from the nearest point to the lakes, staff 

recommendation is for denial of a 10-foot side yard setback variance, being 10 feet 

from the left-side property line when facing the lake, and approval a 35-foot rear 

yard setback variance, being 65 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 145 Collis 

Marina Road [104B, Parcel 011, District 3]. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

100



*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

101



File Attachments for Item:

11. Request by Jim Brown, agent for Wondal Perry for a rear yard setback variance at 202 Long Island 

Drive. Presently zoned R-1R. [Map 122A, Parcel 064, District 3].

102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

11. Request by Jim Brown, agent for Wondal Perry for a rear yard setback variance at 202 

Long Island Drive. Presently zoned R-1R. [Map 122A, Parcel 064, District 3]. The 

applicant is requesting a 15-foot rear yard setback variance, being 85 feet from the nearest 

point to the lake. She would like to construct a 98 square foot spa. This property is 

uniquely shaped and measures 92.71 feet in length and has a lot width at building setback 

of 122.17. Although this lot is considered conforming, less than 10 feet away from the 

location of the proposed structure is a drop off. This drop off is at least 20 feet high and 

slopes downward towards the lake. Staff assessed the property looking for a better location 

for the request. The structure could not be moved further from the lake because of the 

location of the existing 2,300 square foot home. In addition, the proposed structure would 

be placed in the same location as the previous owner’s pool. Due to the shape of the lot and 

the location of the current home, the proposed location is the only option for this request. 

Therefore, this request meets the conditions as stated in Putnam County, Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 66-157(c)(1). 

 

 Staff recommendation is for approval of a 15-foot rear yard setback variance, being 

85 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 202 Long Island Drive [Map 122A, Parcel 

064, District 3]. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

115



 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

116



File Attachments for Item:

12. Request by Jason Sells, Interfor for a front yard setback variance at 370 Dennis Station Road. 

Presently zoned I-M. [Map 059, Parcel 019, District 4].

117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



 

 

 
 

 

Letter of Intent: 

Interfor U.S. Inc 

Contact: Jason Sells 

700 Westpark Dr. 
Peachtree City, GA 30269 
May 28, 2020 

 

Putnam County Planning & Development  

Director Lisa Jackson  

117 Putnam Dr., Suite B  

Eatonton, Ga 31024  

 

Dear Putnam County Planning & Development:  

Interfor U.S. Inc. would like to withdraw without prejudice from the June 4th variance hearing and be 

placed on the agenda for the July 2nd hearing. 

Sincerely,  

Jason Sells 

  

126



127



128



129



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

12. Request by Jason Sells, agent for Interfor U.S. Inc for a front yard setback variance at 

370 Dennis Station Road. Presently zoned I-M. [Map 059, Parcel 019, District 4]. The 

applicants are requesting to withdraw without prejudice. 

 

 Staff recommendation is for approval to withdraw without prejudice at 370 Dennis 

Station Road [Map 059, Parcel 019, District 4]. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

130



File Attachments for Item:

13. Request by Vincent Richardson for a front yard setback variance at 114 Allen's Alley. Presently 

zoned R-2. [Map 055A, Parcel 011, District 4].

131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

13. Request by Vincent Richardson for a front yard setback variance at 114 Allens Alley. 

Presently zoned R-2. [Map 055A, Parcel 011, District 4]. The applicant is requesting a 

22-foot front yard setback in order to cover his existing concrete parking pad with a 

carport. This is a uniquely shaped lot that measures 112 feet in length and has a lot width 

of building set back of 257 feet. Though this property is considered conforming, there are 

multiple factors that make it difficult to make improvements to the property. There is an 

existing 1,305 square foot home positioned exactly 30 feet from the front property line. 

The septic system and drain lines are located on the right-side property line, when facing 

the lake. The existing concrete pad is located right in front of a large drop of that lopes 

downward towards the lake. Upon careful observation, staff discovered that this lot is 

extremely shallow and limits options to build. Due to the extreme shallowness of the 

property and location of the existing concrete pad, the proposed location is the only option 

for this request. Therefore, this request meets the conditions as stated in Putnam County, 

Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66-157(c)(1). 

 

 Staff recommendation is for approval of a 22-foot front yard setback variance, being 

8 feet from the front property line at 114 Allens Alley [Map 055A, Parcel 011, District 

4]. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

145



 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

146



File Attachments for Item:

14. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek Holding's LLC to 

rezone 2.14 acres at Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 030, District 3]. *

147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

14. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek 

Holding's LLC to rezone 2.14 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 

030, District 3]. * The applicants are seeking to rezone this parcel along with four adjacent 

parcels with a total of 57.07 acres to RM-3. If approved, the applicants would like to 

combine the five parcels in order to develop a waterfront community. The applicants are 

requesting that the parcels be rezoned R-M3 with no conditions on use. The applicants 

have provided proposals for either 124 Multi-Family Townhomes or a 175-room hotel, 

both of which will have a main entrance on Collis Road.  This would either add 

approximately 310 residents to the neighborhood or an increase in 937 average weekday 

two-way volume. The applicants are proposing to develop this subdivision in accordance 

with the Putnam County Development Codes with either townhome and condominium 

units similar to Enclave at Waterfront and Cuscowilla Condominium and Townhome Units 

or a hotel facility. Water and sewer will be provided by Piedmont Water. According to the 

applicants, the proposed use will place emphasis on lakeshore protection, recreation use of 

Lake Oconee, and promote common open space for property owners or hotel 

occupants.  The applicants reference an August 28, 2017 Hunden Strategic Partner’s 

Putnam County Hotel & Conference Center Market, Demand and Financial Study, though 

the same is not attached to the application. 
  

The subject property is surrounded by both R-1 and AG-1 zoning, and it fronts one 

collector road (Collis Road) which will require operational improvements to safely 

accommodate the significant traffic volumes that will be generated from this development, 

if this rezoning is approved. 
  
Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture/Forestry in this area, 

there are several similar developments within a five-mile radius of the proposed location. 

Recent development trends also indicate that single family and multifamily development 

will continue to occur in this area. However, staff finds the proposed rezoning will cause 

an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities and shall exceed the present or funded 

capabilities and will otherwise have an impact on the public health, safety, morality, or 

general welfare of Putnam County citizens. 
  

ROAD ENGINEERING COMMENTS: (completed by Larry Kaiser) 
  
Collis Road is a two-lane collector road with average pavement width of approximately 20 

feet. Collis Road terminates at Wards Chapel Road, which is a major collector road. 

Adequate horizontal and vertical sight distance exists to the east and west of Wards Chapel 

299



Road for those vehicles exiting Collis Road.  The intersection radius at Collis Road & Wards 

Chapel is adequate to facilitate the existing traffic demands.  
  

Based on the traffic study submitted by the applicants, the proposed hotel development will 

increase daily traffic by 70% on Collis Road from the existing 1,331 two-way trips to 2,261 

trips per day. The 70% increase in single axle 2000 pound pavement loads generated from 

passenger vehicles will induce accelerated pavement damage. The accelerated pavement 

damage associated with a 70% increase in single axle passenger vehicles is in itself not a 

true reflection of the impact to the roadway pavement.  This increase in passenger traffic 

volume does not provide the entire story. The most impactful damage and significant loss of 

pavement serviceability will be associated with the 18,000 and 36,000 single axle loadings 

generated by construction traffic (tractor trailers, concrete trucks), and waste disposal trucks 

and service trucks once the hotel is in operation. For “pavement damage comparisons”, a 

concrete truck results in approximately 4000 times more damage to the pavement than a 

single axle passenger vehicle. Given the minimal asphalt thickness that currently exist on 

Collis Road, the county would expect that the pavement will begin to substantially 

deteriorate within a few months of construction commencing on this development. The form 

of distress will be pavement rutting (depressions in the wheel paths) and large areas of the 

roadway where asphalt will begin to disintegrate resulting in potholes. During the project 

construction period, estimated to be 15-24 months, the roadway will likely show areas of 

significant distress over 75% of the roadway and in some cases portions of the roadway will 

be impassable (without pavement maintenance being performed).  
   

It should be noted that the traffic impact study memo from the applicants’ engineer does not 

consider other types of traffic loadings once the hotel is in operation (as described in the 

aforementioned) nor does it account for traffic associated with conventions, events (as 

identified in the rezoning application) or other “hotel-related” activities/services that often 

exist with a luxury hotel. The floor area for “events” was not identified in the owner’s 

application package. As such, it is estimated at an additional 200 trips per day.   
  

It is my opinion that the proposed development will adversely impact the safety and 

operation of Collis Road the length of the road from Wards Chapel Road to the proposed 

development.  The construction traffic associated with this development will have a 

detrimental short- and long-term impact to the serviceability of the roadway pavement of 

Collis Road, thereby result in harm to the safe operation of Collis Road. In addition, the 

increase in traffic volume generated upon build-out of this development will result in 

accelerated deterioration of the roadway pavement and the intersection radius at Wards 

Chapel and Collis Road.   
  

To offset the adverse impacts to the safe operation of Collis Road, roadway reclamation and 

resurfacing repair tasks should be undertaken on Collis Road, to include the following: 
  

✓ Pavement Reconstruction of Collis Road. This construction method will consist 

of reclamation of the existing asphalt pavement, compacting the reclaimed 

materials and resurfacing the roadway with an asphalt surface course of 2 inches 

of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete and a binder course of 3 inches of 19 mm asphaltic 

concrete (total length of Collis Road impacted from the development is 3000 feet 

– from Wards Chapel to the proposed entrance). 

✓ Thermoplastic edge and centerline striping of Collis Road from Wards Chapel to 

proposed entrance. 

300



✓ Shoulder rehabilitation & traffic control of Collis Road from Wards Chapel to 

proposed entrance, to include the construction of a 5-foot shoulder (minimum 2:1 

slope) and roadside ditch 

✓ Increasing the radii of the intersection of Wards Chapel at Collis Road to a 

minimum of 30 feet with the widened section to be constructed with 6 inches of 

graded aggregate base and 2.5 inches of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete. 

 

 On May 29, 2020, the Board of Commissioners (“Board”) entered into a development 

agreement with the applicants that obligates the Board to improve Collis Road from Wards 

Chapel to the proposed development entrance in accordance with the terms described by Mr. 

Kaiser in exchange for the applicants’ agreement to construction a hotel in accordance with 

site plans attached thereto.  As the hotel site plans are the same as the plans submitted for 

the proposed hotel development in the applicant’s rezoning application, Collis Road will be 

improved to address Mr. Kaiser’s concerns if the development is in accordance with the 

submitted hotel plans. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval of the proposed rezoning, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. To restrict the available uses of the property as follows: 

a. Hotel 

i. The hotel shall substantial conform to the submitted scaled conceptual 

plans and renderings submitted in support of the proposed rezoning 

application, to include the buildings, ingress and egress improvements, 

and other structures; 

ii. No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of guest rooms may 

contain stoves, conventional ovens or full-size refrigerators (larger than 

11.5 cubic feet).  No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of 

guest rooms shall be rented or leased by the same person for continuous 

periods in excess of ten (10) days; 

iii. Buildings shall be constructed of brick and/or stacked stone on all 

sides.  The hotel building may utilize contrasting architectural metal 

panels or accents; 

iv. Not to exceed the proposed total of 175 room as stated in the application. 

Any increase beyond this total will require approval from the Board of 

Commissioner; 

  
2. The application of green infrastructure (bioswales/biorention, etc) in combination of 

water quality retention ponds, will require implementation to minimize the negative 

effects of imperviousness and stormwater runoff to the water quality of Lake Oconee. 

The Georgia Stormwater Manual will be applied to the project under review. The 

manual’s water quality template will be used to assess the various water quality BMP 

options.  

  

3. Provide at least one 3-inch caliper tree per 3 parking spaces. Trees shall be placed in tree 

islands within the footprint of the parking lot. Location of trees shall be determined by 

the county during the site development review (LDP phase). Provide two – 3-inch caliper 

trees per 100 feet on the shoulder of all roadways within the development. Trees to be 

placed on both sides of all internal roads. Specific location of the trees adjacent to the 

internal roads to be determined by the county during the site development review 

301



process. These tree plantings shall not preclude the developer from installing additional 

vegetation as he/she deems appropriate. 

  
4. Provide a 25-foot-wide densely planted landscape buffer along the property line on Doug 

Lane and where the property abuts residential parcels on Collis Marina Road. The 

additional plantings shall provide a 75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape 

plan and species to be approved during the development review phase. 

  
5. Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road. Emergency exit shall not be paved. 

“Grass Crete” or similar product shall be used as the surface treatment for this access. A 

removable bollard (s) or similar barrier shall be used with only emergency services being 

provided entryway   

  
6. Preserve a 20’ non-buildable strip along the Collis Road frontage measured from edge 

of right-of-way.  The purpose of this condition is for future county acquisition as right-

of-way. 

  
7. A minimum of 65 feet building setback from Lake Oconee will be required. This includes 

all structures and stormwater management facilities. Walkways/paths and boat docks are 

excluded from this setback requirement.   

  

8. Development shall have only one (1) vehicular access. Access shall be from Collis Road. 

  

9. Map 104, parcel 030, map 104 parcel 032, map 104 parcel 032001, map 104, parcel 033 

and map 104 B, parcel 001, must be combined and cannot be used or sold as a standalone 

parcel.    

 

10. This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as 

stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

302



The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

303



File Attachments for Item:

15. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Lick Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 21.40 acres on Collis 

Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032001, District 3]. *

304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

15. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Lick Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 21.40 

acres on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032001, District 3]. * The 

applicants are seeking to rezone this parcel along with four adjacent parcels with a total of 

57.07 acres to RM-3. If approved, the applicants would like to combine the five parcels in 

order to develop a waterfront community. The applicants are requesting that the parcels be 

rezoned R-M3 with no conditions on use. The applicants have provided proposals for 

either 124 Multi-Family Townhomes or a 175-room hotel, both of which will have a main 

entrance on Collis Road.  This would either add approximately 310 residents to the 

neighborhood or an increase in 937 average weekday two-way volume. The applicants are 

proposing to develop this subdivision in accordance with the Putnam County Development 

Codes with either townhome and condominium units similar to Enclave at Waterfront and 

Cuscowilla Condominium and Townhome Units or a hotel facility. Water and sewer will 

be provided by Piedmont Water. According to the applicants, the proposed use will place 

emphasis on lakeshore protection, recreation use of Lake Oconee, and promote common 

open space for property owners or hotel occupants.  The applicants reference an August 28, 

2017 Hunden Strategic Partner’s Putnam County Hotel & Conference Center Market, 

Demand and Financial Study, though the same is not attached to the application. 

  
The subject property is surrounded by both R-1 and AG-1 zoning, and it fronts one 

collector road (Collis Road) which will require operational improvements to safely 

accommodate the significant traffic volumes that will be generated from this development, 

if this rezoning is approved. 
  
Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture/Forestry in this area, 

there are several similar developments within a five-mile radius of the proposed location. 

Recent development trends also indicate that single family and multifamily development 

will continue to occur in this area. However, staff finds the proposed rezoning will cause 

an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities and shall exceed the present or funded 

capabilities and will otherwise have an impact on the public health, safety, morality, or 

general welfare of Putnam County citizens. 
  

ROAD ENGINEERING COMMENTS: (completed by Larry Kaiser) 
  
Collis Road is a two-lane collector road with average pavement width of approximately 20 

feet. Collis Road terminates at Wards Chapel Road, which is a major collector road. 

Adequate horizontal and vertical sight distance exists to the east and west of Wards Chapel 

369



Road for those vehicles exiting Collis Road.  The intersection radius at Collis Road & Wards 

Chapel is adequate to facilitate the existing traffic demands.  
  

Based on the traffic study submitted by the applicants, the proposed hotel development will 

increase daily traffic by 70% on Collis Road from the existing 1,331 two-way trips to 2,261 

trips per day. The 70% increase in single axle 2000 pound pavement loads generated from 

passenger vehicles will induce accelerated pavement damage. The accelerated pavement 

damage associated with a 70% increase in single axle passenger vehicles is in itself not a 

true reflection of the impact to the roadway pavement.  This increase in passenger traffic 

volume does not provide the entire story. The most impactful damage and significant loss of 

pavement serviceability will be associated with the 18,000 and 36,000 single axle loadings 

generated by construction traffic (tractor trailers, concrete trucks), and waste disposal trucks 

and service trucks once the hotel is in operation. For “pavement damage comparisons”, a 

concrete truck results in approximately 4000 times more damage to the pavement than a 

single axle passenger vehicle. Given the minimal asphalt thickness that currently exist on 

Collis Road, the county would expect that the pavement will begin to substantially 

deteriorate within a few months of construction commencing on this development. The form 

of distress will be pavement rutting (depressions in the wheel paths) and large areas of the 

roadway where asphalt will begin to disintegrate resulting in potholes. During the project 

construction period, estimated to be 15-24 months, the roadway will likely show areas of 

significant distress over 75% of the roadway and in some cases portions of the roadway will 

be impassable (without pavement maintenance being performed).  
   

It should be noted that the traffic impact study memo from the applicants’ engineer does not 

consider other types of traffic loadings once the hotel is in operation (as described in the 

aforementioned) nor does it account for traffic associated with conventions, events (as 

identified in the rezoning application) or other “hotel-related” activities/services that often 

exist with a luxury hotel. The floor area for “events” was not identified in the owner’s 

application package. As such, it is estimated at an additional 200 trips per day.   
  

It is my opinion that the proposed development will adversely impact the safety and 

operation of Collis Road the length of the road from Wards Chapel Road to the proposed 

development.  The construction traffic associated with this development will have a 

detrimental short- and long-term impact to the serviceability of the roadway pavement of 

Collis Road, thereby result in harm to the safe operation of Collis Road. In addition, the 

increase in traffic volume generated upon build-out of this development will result in 

accelerated deterioration of the roadway pavement and the intersection radius at Wards 

Chapel and Collis Road.   
  

To offset the adverse impacts to the safe operation of Collis Road, roadway reclamation and 

resurfacing repair tasks should be undertaken on Collis Road, to include the following: 
  

✓ Pavement Reconstruction of Collis Road. This construction method will consist 

of reclamation of the existing asphalt pavement, compacting the reclaimed 

materials and resurfacing the roadway with an asphalt surface course of 2 inches 

of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete and a binder course of 3 inches of 19 mm asphaltic 

concrete (total length of Collis Road impacted from the development is 3000 feet 

– from Wards Chapel to the proposed entrance). 

✓ Thermoplastic edge and centerline striping of Collis Road from Wards Chapel to 

proposed entrance. 

370



✓ Shoulder rehabilitation & traffic control of Collis Road from Wards Chapel to 

proposed entrance, to include the construction of a 5-foot shoulder (minimum 2:1 

slope) and roadside ditch 

✓ Increasing the radii of the intersection of Wards Chapel at Collis Road to a 

minimum of 30 feet with the widened section to be constructed with 6 inches of 

graded aggregate base and 2.5 inches of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete. 

 

 On May 29, 2020, the Board of Commissioners (“Board”) entered into a development 

agreement with the applicants that obligates the Board to improve Collis Road from Wards 

Chapel to the proposed development entrance in accordance with the terms described by Mr. 

Kaiser in exchange for the applicants’ agreement to construction a hotel in accordance with 

site plans attached thereto.  As the hotel site plans are the same as the plans submitted for 

the proposed hotel development in the applicant’s rezoning application, Collis Road will be 

improved to address Mr. Kaiser’s concerns if the development is in accordance with the 

submitted hotel plans. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval of the proposed rezoning, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. To restrict the available uses of the property as follows: 

a. Hotel 

i. The hotel shall substantial conform to the submitted scaled conceptual 

plans and renderings submitted in support of the proposed rezoning 

application, to include the buildings, ingress and egress improvements, 

and other structures; 

ii. No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of guest rooms may 

contain stoves, conventional ovens or full-size refrigerators (larger than 

11.5 cubic feet).  No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of 

guest rooms shall be rented or leased by the same person for continuous 

periods in excess of ten (10) days; 

iii. Buildings shall be constructed of brick and/or stacked stone on all 

sides.  The hotel building may utilize contrasting architectural metal 

panels or accents; 

iv. Not to exceed the proposed total of 175 room as stated in the application. 

Any increase beyond this total will require approval from the Board of 

Commissioner; 

  
2. The application of green infrastructure (bioswales/biorention, etc) in combination of 

water quality retention ponds, will require implementation to minimize the negative 

effects of imperviousness and stormwater runoff to the water quality of Lake Oconee. 

The Georgia Stormwater Manual will be applied to the project under review. The 

manual’s water quality template will be used to assess the various water quality BMP 

options.  

  

3. Provide at least one 3-inch caliper tree per 3 parking spaces. Trees shall be placed in tree 

islands within the footprint of the parking lot. Location of trees shall be determined by 

the county during the site development review (LDP phase). Provide two – 3-inch caliper 

trees per 100 feet on the shoulder of all roadways within the development. Trees to be 

placed on both sides of all internal roads. Specific location of the trees adjacent to the 

internal roads to be determined by the county during the site development review 

371



process. These tree plantings shall not preclude the developer from installing additional 

vegetation as he/she deems appropriate. 

  
4. Provide a 25-foot-wide densely planted landscape buffer along the property line on Doug 

Lane and where the property abuts residential parcels on Collis Marina Road. The 

additional plantings shall provide a 75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape 

plan and species to be approved during the development review phase. 

  
5. Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road. Emergency exit shall not be paved. 

“Grass Crete” or similar product shall be used as the surface treatment for this access. A 

removable bollard (s) or similar barrier shall be used with only emergency services being 

provided entryway   

  
6. Preserve a 20’ non-buildable strip along the Collis Road frontage measured from edge 

of right-of-way.  The purpose of this condition is for future county acquisition as right-

of-way. 

  
7. A minimum of 65 feet building setback from Lake Oconee will be required. This includes 

all structures and stormwater management facilities. Walkways/paths and boat docks are 

excluded from this setback requirement.   

  

8. Development shall have only one (1) vehicular access. Access shall be from Collis Road. 

  

9. Map 104, parcel 030, map 104 parcel 032, map 104 parcel 032001, map 104, parcel 033 

and map 104 B, parcel 001, must be combined and cannot be used or sold as a standalone 

parcel.    

 

10. This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as 

stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

372



The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

373



File Attachments for Item:

16. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Mallard's Overlook, LLC to rezone 29.58 acres at Collis 

Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, District 3]. *

374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437



438



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

16. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Mallard's Overlook, LLC to rezone 29.58 

acres on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, District 3]. * The 

applicants are seeking to rezone this parcel along with four adjacent parcels with a total of 

57.07 acres to RM-3. If approved, the applicants would like to combine the five parcels in 

order to develop a waterfront community. The applicants are requesting that the parcels be 

rezoned R-M3 with no conditions on use. The applicants have provided proposals for 

either 124 Multi-Family Townhomes or a 175-room hotel, both of which will have a main 

entrance on Collis Road.  This would either add approximately 310 residents to the 

neighborhood or an increase in 937 average weekday two-way volume. The applicants are 

proposing to develop this subdivision in accordance with the Putnam County Development 

Codes with either townhome and condominium units similar to Enclave at Waterfront and 

Cuscowilla Condominium and Townhome Units or a hotel facility. Water and sewer will 

be provided by Piedmont Water. According to the applicants, the proposed use will place 

emphasis on lakeshore protection, recreation use of Lake Oconee, and promote common 

open space for property owners or hotel occupants.  The applicants reference an August 28, 

2017 Hunden Strategic Partner’s Putnam County Hotel & Conference Center Market, 

Demand and Financial Study, though the same is not attached to the application. 

  
The subject property is surrounded by both R-1 and AG-1 zoning, and it fronts one 

collector road (Collis Road) which will require operational improvements to safely 

accommodate the significant traffic volumes that will be generated from this development, 

if this rezoning is approved. 
  
Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture/Forestry in this area, 

there are several similar developments within a five-mile radius of the proposed location. 

Recent development trends also indicate that single family and multifamily development 

will continue to occur in this area. However, staff finds the proposed rezoning will cause 

an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities and shall exceed the present or funded 

capabilities and will otherwise have an impact on the public health, safety, morality, or 

general welfare of Putnam County citizens. 
  

ROAD ENGINEERING COMMENTS: (completed by Larry Kaiser) 
  
Collis Road is a two-lane collector road with average pavement width of approximately 20 

feet. Collis Road terminates at Wards Chapel Road, which is a major collector road. 

Adequate horizontal and vertical sight distance exists to the east and west of Wards Chapel 

439



Road for those vehicles exiting Collis Road.  The intersection radius at Collis Road & Wards 

Chapel is adequate to facilitate the existing traffic demands.  
  

Based on the traffic study submitted by the applicants, the proposed hotel development will 

increase daily traffic by 70% on Collis Road from the existing 1,331 two-way trips to 2,261 

trips per day. The 70% increase in single axle 2000 pound pavement loads generated from 

passenger vehicles will induce accelerated pavement damage. The accelerated pavement 

damage associated with a 70% increase in single axle passenger vehicles is in itself not a 

true reflection of the impact to the roadway pavement.  This increase in passenger traffic 

volume does not provide the entire story. The most impactful damage and significant loss of 

pavement serviceability will be associated with the 18,000 and 36,000 single axle loadings 

generated by construction traffic (tractor trailers, concrete trucks), and waste disposal trucks 

and service trucks once the hotel is in operation. For “pavement damage comparisons”, a 

concrete truck results in approximately 4000 times more damage to the pavement than a 

single axle passenger vehicle. Given the minimal asphalt thickness that currently exist on 

Collis Road, the county would expect that the pavement will begin to substantially 

deteriorate within a few months of construction commencing on this development. The form 

of distress will be pavement rutting (depressions in the wheel paths) and large areas of the 

roadway where asphalt will begin to disintegrate resulting in potholes. During the project 

construction period, estimated to be 15-24 months, the roadway will likely show areas of 

significant distress over 75% of the roadway and in some cases portions of the roadway will 

be impassable (without pavement maintenance being performed).  
   

It should be noted that the traffic impact study memo from the applicants’ engineer does not 

consider other types of traffic loadings once the hotel is in operation (as described in the 

aforementioned) nor does it account for traffic associated with conventions, events (as 

identified in the rezoning application) or other “hotel-related” activities/services that often 

exist with a luxury hotel. The floor area for “events” was not identified in the owner’s 

application package. As such, it is estimated at an additional 200 trips per day.   
  

It is my opinion that the proposed development will adversely impact the safety and 

operation of Collis Road the length of the road from Wards Chapel Road to the proposed 

development.  The construction traffic associated with this development will have a 

detrimental short- and long-term impact to the serviceability of the roadway pavement of 

Collis Road, thereby result in harm to the safe operation of Collis Road. In addition, the 

increase in traffic volume generated upon build-out of this development will result in 

accelerated deterioration of the roadway pavement and the intersection radius at Wards 

Chapel and Collis Road.   
  

To offset the adverse impacts to the safe operation of Collis Road, roadway reclamation and 

resurfacing repair tasks should be undertaken on Collis Road, to include the following: 
  

✓ Pavement Reconstruction of Collis Road. This construction method will consist 

of reclamation of the existing asphalt pavement, compacting the reclaimed 

materials and resurfacing the roadway with an asphalt surface course of 2 inches 

of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete and a binder course of 3 inches of 19 mm asphaltic 

concrete (total length of Collis Road impacted from the development is 3000 feet 

– from Wards Chapel to the proposed entrance). 

✓ Thermoplastic edge and centerline striping of Collis Road from Wards Chapel to 

proposed entrance. 

440



✓ Shoulder rehabilitation & traffic control of Collis Road from Wards Chapel to 

proposed entrance, to include the construction of a 5-foot shoulder (minimum 2:1 

slope) and roadside ditch 

✓ Increasing the radii of the intersection of Wards Chapel at Collis Road to a 

minimum of 30 feet with the widened section to be constructed with 6 inches of 

graded aggregate base and 2.5 inches of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete. 

 

 On May 29, 2020, the Board of Commissioners (“Board”) entered into a development 

agreement with the applicants that obligates the Board to improve Collis Road from Wards 

Chapel to the proposed development entrance in accordance with the terms described by Mr. 

Kaiser in exchange for the applicants’ agreement to construction a hotel in accordance with 

site plans attached thereto.  As the hotel site plans are the same as the plans submitted for 

the proposed hotel development in the applicant’s rezoning application, Collis Road will be 

improved to address Mr. Kaiser’s concerns if the development is in accordance with the 

submitted hotel plans. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval of the proposed rezoning, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. To restrict the available uses of the property as follows: 

a. Hotel 

i. The hotel shall substantial conform to the submitted scaled conceptual 

plans and renderings submitted in support of the proposed rezoning 

application, to include the buildings, ingress and egress improvements, 

and other structures; 

ii. No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of guest rooms may 

contain stoves, conventional ovens or full-size refrigerators (larger than 

11.5 cubic feet).  No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of 

guest rooms shall be rented or leased by the same person for continuous 

periods in excess of ten (10) days; 

iii. Buildings shall be constructed of brick and/or stacked stone on all 

sides.  The hotel building may utilize contrasting architectural metal 

panels or accents; 

iv. Not to exceed the proposed total of 175 room as stated in the application. 

Any increase beyond this total will require approval from the Board of 

Commissioner; 

  
2. The application of green infrastructure (bioswales/biorention, etc) in combination of 

water quality retention ponds, will require implementation to minimize the negative 

effects of imperviousness and stormwater runoff to the water quality of Lake Oconee. 

The Georgia Stormwater Manual will be applied to the project under review. The 

manual’s water quality template will be used to assess the various water quality BMP 

options.  

  

3. Provide at least one 3-inch caliper tree per 3 parking spaces. Trees shall be placed in tree 

islands within the footprint of the parking lot. Location of trees shall be determined by 

the county during the site development review (LDP phase). Provide two – 3-inch caliper 

trees per 100 feet on the shoulder of all roadways within the development. Trees to be 

placed on both sides of all internal roads. Specific location of the trees adjacent to the 

internal roads to be determined by the county during the site development review 

441



process. These tree plantings shall not preclude the developer from installing additional 

vegetation as he/she deems appropriate. 

  
4. Provide a 25-foot-wide densely planted landscape buffer along the property line on Doug 

Lane and where the property abuts residential parcels on Collis Marina Road. The 

additional plantings shall provide a 75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape 

plan and species to be approved during the development review phase. 

  
5. Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road. Emergency exit shall not be paved. 

“Grass Crete” or similar product shall be used as the surface treatment for this access. A 

removable bollard (s) or similar barrier shall be used with only emergency services being 

provided entryway   

  
6. Preserve a 20’ non-buildable strip along the Collis Road frontage measured from edge 

of right-of-way.  The purpose of this condition is for future county acquisition as right-

of-way. 

  
7. A minimum of 65 feet building setback from Lake Oconee will be required. This includes 

all structures and stormwater management facilities. Walkways/paths and boat docks are 

excluded from this setback requirement.   

  

8. Development shall have only one (1) vehicular access. Access shall be from Collis Road. 

  

9. Map 104, parcel 030, map 104 parcel 032, map 104 parcel 032001, map 104, parcel 033 

and map 104 B, parcel 001, must be combined and cannot be used or sold as a standalone 

parcel.    

 

10. This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as 

stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

442



The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

443



File Attachments for Item:

17. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek Holding's LLC to 

rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 033, District 3]. *

444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



489



490



491



492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



501



502



503



504



505



506



507



508



509



510



511



512



513



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

17. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek 

Holding's LLC to rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 

033, District 3]. * The applicants are seeking to rezone this parcel along with four adjacent 

parcels with a total of 57.07 acres to RM-3. If approved, the applicants would like to 

combine the five parcels in order to develop a waterfront community. The applicants are 

requesting that the parcels be rezoned R-M3 with no conditions on use. The applicants 

have provided proposals for either 124 Multi-Family Townhomes or a 175-room hotel, 

both of which will have a main entrance on Collis Road.  This would either add 

approximately 310 residents to the neighborhood or an increase in 937 average weekday 

two-way volume. The applicants are proposing to develop this subdivision in accordance 

with the Putnam County Development Codes with either townhome and condominium 

units similar to Enclave at Waterfront and Cuscowilla Condominium and Townhome Units 

or a hotel facility. Water and sewer will be provided by Piedmont Water. According to the 

applicants, the proposed use will place emphasis on lakeshore protection, recreation use of 

Lake Oconee, and promote common open space for property owners or hotel 

occupants.  The applicants reference an August 28, 2017 Hunden Strategic Partner’s 

Putnam County Hotel & Conference Center Market, Demand and Financial Study, though 

the same is not attached to the application. 
  

The subject property is surrounded by both R-1 and AG-1 zoning, and it fronts one 

collector road (Collis Road) which will require operational improvements to safely 

accommodate the significant traffic volumes that will be generated from this development, 

if this rezoning is approved. 
  
Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture/Forestry in this area, 

there are several similar developments within a five-mile radius of the proposed location. 

Recent development trends also indicate that single family and multifamily development 

will continue to occur in this area. However, staff finds the proposed rezoning will cause 

an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities and shall exceed the present or funded 

capabilities and will otherwise have an impact on the public health, safety, morality, or 

general welfare of Putnam County citizens. 
  

ROAD ENGINEERING COMMENTS: (completed by Larry Kaiser) 
  
Collis Road is a two-lane collector road with average pavement width of approximately 20 

feet. Collis Road terminates at Wards Chapel Road, which is a major collector road. 

Adequate horizontal and vertical sight distance exists to the east and west of Wards Chapel 

514



Road for those vehicles exiting Collis Road.  The intersection radius at Collis Road & Wards 

Chapel is adequate to facilitate the existing traffic demands.  
  

Based on the traffic study submitted by the applicants, the proposed hotel development will 

increase daily traffic by 70% on Collis Road from the existing 1,331 two-way trips to 2,261 

trips per day. The 70% increase in single axle 2000 pound pavement loads generated from 

passenger vehicles will induce accelerated pavement damage. The accelerated pavement 

damage associated with a 70% increase in single axle passenger vehicles is in itself not a 

true reflection of the impact to the roadway pavement.  This increase in passenger traffic 

volume does not provide the entire story. The most impactful damage and significant loss of 

pavement serviceability will be associated with the 18,000 and 36,000 single axle loadings 

generated by construction traffic (tractor trailers, concrete trucks), and waste disposal trucks 

and service trucks once the hotel is in operation. For “pavement damage comparisons”, a 

concrete truck results in approximately 4000 times more damage to the pavement than a 

single axle passenger vehicle. Given the minimal asphalt thickness that currently exist on 

Collis Road, the county would expect that the pavement will begin to substantially 

deteriorate within a few months of construction commencing on this development. The form 

of distress will be pavement rutting (depressions in the wheel paths) and large areas of the 

roadway where asphalt will begin to disintegrate resulting in potholes. During the project 

construction period, estimated to be 15-24 months, the roadway will likely show areas of 

significant distress over 75% of the roadway and in some cases portions of the roadway will 

be impassable (without pavement maintenance being performed).  
   

It should be noted that the traffic impact study memo from the applicants’ engineer does not 

consider other types of traffic loadings once the hotel is in operation (as described in the 

aforementioned) nor does it account for traffic associated with conventions, events (as 

identified in the rezoning application) or other “hotel-related” activities/services that often 

exist with a luxury hotel. The floor area for “events” was not identified in the owner’s 

application package. As such, it is estimated at an additional 200 trips per day.   
  

It is my opinion that the proposed development will adversely impact the safety and 

operation of Collis Road the length of the road from Wards Chapel Road to the proposed 

development.  The construction traffic associated with this development will have a 

detrimental short- and long-term impact to the serviceability of the roadway pavement of 

Collis Road, thereby result in harm to the safe operation of Collis Road. In addition, the 

increase in traffic volume generated upon build-out of this development will result in 

accelerated deterioration of the roadway pavement and the intersection radius at Wards 

Chapel and Collis Road.   
  

To offset the adverse impacts to the safe operation of Collis Road, roadway reclamation and 

resurfacing repair tasks should be undertaken on Collis Road, to include the following: 
  

✓ Pavement Reconstruction of Collis Road. This construction method will consist 

of reclamation of the existing asphalt pavement, compacting the reclaimed 

materials and resurfacing the roadway with an asphalt surface course of 2 inches 

of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete and a binder course of 3 inches of 19 mm asphaltic 

concrete (total length of Collis Road impacted from the development is 3000 feet 

– from Wards Chapel to the proposed entrance). 

✓ Thermoplastic edge and centerline striping of Collis Road from Wards Chapel to 

proposed entrance. 

515



✓ Shoulder rehabilitation & traffic control of Collis Road from Wards Chapel to 

proposed entrance, to include the construction of a 5-foot shoulder (minimum 2:1 

slope) and roadside ditch 

✓ Increasing the radii of the intersection of Wards Chapel at Collis Road to a 

minimum of 30 feet with the widened section to be constructed with 6 inches of 

graded aggregate base and 2.5 inches of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete. 

 

 On May 29, 2020, the Board of Commissioners (“Board”) entered into a development 

agreement with the applicants that obligates the Board to improve Collis Road from Wards 

Chapel to the proposed development entrance in accordance with the terms described by Mr. 

Kaiser in exchange for the applicants’ agreement to construction a hotel in accordance with 

site plans attached thereto.  As the hotel site plans are the same as the plans submitted for 

the proposed hotel development in the applicant’s rezoning application, Collis Road will be 

improved to address Mr. Kaiser’s concerns if the development is in accordance with the 

submitted hotel plans. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval of the proposed rezoning, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. To restrict the available uses of the property as follows: 

a. Hotel 

i. The hotel shall substantial conform to the submitted scaled conceptual 

plans and renderings submitted in support of the proposed rezoning 

application, to include the buildings, ingress and egress improvements, 

and other structures; 

ii. No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of guest rooms may 

contain stoves, conventional ovens or full-size refrigerators (larger than 

11.5 cubic feet).  No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of 

guest rooms shall be rented or leased by the same person for continuous 

periods in excess of ten (10) days; 

iii. Buildings shall be constructed of brick and/or stacked stone on all 

sides.  The hotel building may utilize contrasting architectural metal 

panels or accents; 

iv. Not to exceed the proposed total of 175 room as stated in the application. 

Any increase beyond this total will require approval from the Board of 

Commissioner; 

  
2. The application of green infrastructure (bioswales/biorention, etc) in combination of 

water quality retention ponds, will require implementation to minimize the negative 

effects of imperviousness and stormwater runoff to the water quality of Lake Oconee. 

The Georgia Stormwater Manual will be applied to the project under review. The 

manual’s water quality template will be used to assess the various water quality BMP 

options.  

  

3. Provide at least one 3-inch caliper tree per 3 parking spaces. Trees shall be placed in tree 

islands within the footprint of the parking lot. Location of trees shall be determined by 

the county during the site development review (LDP phase). Provide two – 3-inch caliper 

trees per 100 feet on the shoulder of all roadways within the development. Trees to be 

placed on both sides of all internal roads. Specific location of the trees adjacent to the 

internal roads to be determined by the county during the site development review 

516



process. These tree plantings shall not preclude the developer from installing additional 

vegetation as he/she deems appropriate. 

  
4. Provide a 25-foot-wide densely planted landscape buffer along the property line on Doug 

Lane and where the property abuts residential parcels on Collis Marina Road. The 

additional plantings shall provide a 75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape 

plan and species to be approved during the development review phase. 

  
5. Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road. Emergency exit shall not be paved. 

“Grass Crete” or similar product shall be used as the surface treatment for this access. A 

removable bollard (s) or similar barrier shall be used with only emergency services being 

provided entryway   

  
6. Preserve a 20’ non-buildable strip along the Collis Road frontage measured from edge 

of right-of-way.  The purpose of this condition is for future county acquisition as right-

of-way. 

  
7. A minimum of 65 feet building setback from Lake Oconee will be required. This includes 

all structures and stormwater management facilities. Walkways/paths and boat docks are 

excluded from this setback requirement.   

  

8. Development shall have only one (1) vehicular access. Access shall be from Collis Road. 

  

9. Map 104, parcel 030, map 104 parcel 032, map 104 parcel 032001, map 104, parcel 033 

and map 104 B, parcel 001, must be combined and cannot be used or sold as a standalone 

parcel.    

 

10. This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as 

stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 
The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

517



The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

518



File Attachments for Item:

18. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC to rezone 0.63 acres on Doug Lane

from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, Parcel 001, District 3]. *

519



520



521



522



523



524



525



526



527



528



529



530



531



532



533



534



535



536



537



538



539



540



541



542



543



544



545



546



547



548



549



550



551



552



553



554



555



556



557



558



559



560



561



562



563



564



565



566



567



568



569



570



571



572



573



574



575



576



577



578



579



580



581



582



583



584



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

May 21, 2020 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/4/2020 

 

18. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC to rezone 0.63 

acres/27,298 sq. ft. on Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, Parcel 001, District 

3]. * The applicants are seeking to rezone this parcel along with four adjacent parcels with 

a total of 57.07 acres to RM-3. If approved, the applicants would like to combine the five 

parcels in order to develop a waterfront community. The applicants are requesting that the 

parcels be rezoned R-M3 with no conditions on use. The applicants have provided 

proposals for either 124 Multi-Family Townhomes or a 175-room hotel, both of which will 

have a main entrance on Collis Road.  This would either add approximately 310 residents 

to the neighborhood or an increase in 937 average weekday two-way volume. The 

applicants are proposing to develop this subdivision in accordance with the Putnam County 

Development Codes with either townhome and condominium units similar to Enclave at 

Waterfront and Cuscowilla Condominium and Townhome Units or a hotel facility. Water 

and sewer will be provided by Piedmont Water. According to the applicants, the proposed 

use will place emphasis on lakeshore protection, recreation use of Lake Oconee, and 

promote common open space for property owners or hotel occupants.  The applicants 

reference an August 28, 2017 Hunden Strategic Partner’s Putnam County Hotel & 

Conference Center Market, Demand and Financial Study, though the same is not attached 

to the application. 
  

The subject property is surrounded by both R-1 and AG-1 zoning, and it fronts one 

collector road (Collis Road) which will require operational improvements to safely 

accommodate the significant traffic volumes that will be generated from this development, 

if this rezoning is approved. 
  
Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture/Forestry in this area, 

there are several similar developments within a five-mile radius of the proposed location. 

Recent development trends also indicate that single family and multifamily development 

will continue to occur in this area. However, staff finds the proposed rezoning will cause 

an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities and shall exceed the present or funded 

capabilities and will otherwise have an impact on the public health, safety, morality, or 

general welfare of Putnam County citizens. 
  

ROAD ENGINEERING COMMENTS: (completed by Larry Kaiser) 
  
Collis Road is a two-lane collector road with average pavement width of approximately 20 

feet. Collis Road terminates at Wards Chapel Road, which is a major collector road. 

Adequate horizontal and vertical sight distance exists to the east and west of Wards Chapel 

585



Road for those vehicles exiting Collis Road.  The intersection radius at Collis Road & Wards 

Chapel is adequate to facilitate the existing traffic demands.  
  

Based on the traffic study submitted by the applicants, the proposed hotel development will 

increase daily traffic by 70% on Collis Road from the existing 1,331 two-way trips to 2,261 

trips per day. The 70% increase in single axle 2000 pound pavement loads generated from 

passenger vehicles will induce accelerated pavement damage. The accelerated pavement 

damage associated with a 70% increase in single axle passenger vehicles is in itself not a 

true reflection of the impact to the roadway pavement.  This increase in passenger traffic 

volume does not provide the entire story. The most impactful damage and significant loss of 

pavement serviceability will be associated with the 18,000 and 36,000 single axle loadings 

generated by construction traffic (tractor trailers, concrete trucks), and waste disposal trucks 

and service trucks once the hotel is in operation. For “pavement damage comparisons”, a 

concrete truck results in approximately 4000 times more damage to the pavement than a 

single axle passenger vehicle. Given the minimal asphalt thickness that currently exist on 

Collis Road, the county would expect that the pavement will begin to substantially 

deteriorate within a few months of construction commencing on this development. The form 

of distress will be pavement rutting (depressions in the wheel paths) and large areas of the 

roadway where asphalt will begin to disintegrate resulting in potholes. During the project 

construction period, estimated to be 15-24 months, the roadway will likely show areas of 

significant distress over 75% of the roadway and in some cases portions of the roadway will 

be impassable (without pavement maintenance being performed).  
   

It should be noted that the traffic impact study memo from the applicants’ engineer does not 

consider other types of traffic loadings once the hotel is in operation (as described in the 

aforementioned) nor does it account for traffic associated with conventions, events (as 

identified in the rezoning application) or other “hotel-related” activities/services that often 

exist with a luxury hotel. The floor area for “events” was not identified in the owner’s 

application package. As such, it is estimated at an additional 200 trips per day.   
  

It is my opinion that the proposed development will adversely impact the safety and 

operation of Collis Road the length of the road from Wards Chapel Road to the proposed 

development.  The construction traffic associated with this development will have a 

detrimental short- and long-term impact to the serviceability of the roadway pavement of 

Collis Road, thereby result in harm to the safe operation of Collis Road. In addition, the 

increase in traffic volume generated upon build-out of this development will result in 

accelerated deterioration of the roadway pavement and the intersection radius at Wards 

Chapel and Collis Road.   
  

To offset the adverse impacts to the safe operation of Collis Road, roadway reclamation and 

resurfacing repair tasks should be undertaken on Collis Road, to include the following: 
  

✓ Pavement Reconstruction of Collis Road. This construction method will consist 

of reclamation of the existing asphalt pavement, compacting the reclaimed 

materials and resurfacing the roadway with an asphalt surface course of 2 inches 

of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete and a binder course of 3 inches of 19 mm asphaltic 

concrete (total length of Collis Road impacted from the development is 3000 feet 

– from Wards Chapel to the proposed entrance). 

✓ Thermoplastic edge and centerline striping of Collis Road from Wards Chapel to 

proposed entrance. 

586



✓ Shoulder rehabilitation & traffic control of Collis Road from Wards Chapel to 

proposed entrance, to include the construction of a 5-foot shoulder (minimum 2:1 

slope) and roadside ditch 

✓ Increasing the radii of the intersection of Wards Chapel at Collis Road to a 

minimum of 30 feet with the widened section to be constructed with 6 inches of 

graded aggregate base and 2.5 inches of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete. 

 

 On May 29, 2020, the Board of Commissioners (“Board”) entered into a development 

agreement with the applicants that obligates the Board to improve Collis Road from Wards 

Chapel to the proposed development entrance in accordance with the terms described by Mr. 

Kaiser in exchange for the applicants’ agreement to construction a hotel in accordance with 

site plans attached thereto.  As the hotel site plans are the same as the plans submitted for 

the proposed hotel development in the applicant’s rezoning application, Collis Road will be 

improved to address Mr. Kaiser’s concerns if the development is in accordance with the 

submitted hotel plans. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval of the proposed rezoning, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. To restrict the available uses of the property as follows: 

a. Hotel 

i. The hotel shall substantial conform to the submitted scaled conceptual 

plans and renderings submitted in support of the proposed rezoning 

application, to include the buildings, ingress and egress improvements, 

and other structures; 

ii. No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of guest rooms may 

contain stoves, conventional ovens or full-size refrigerators (larger than 

11.5 cubic feet).  No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of 

guest rooms shall be rented or leased by the same person for continuous 

periods in excess of ten (10) days; 

iii. Buildings shall be constructed of brick and/or stacked stone on all 

sides.  The hotel building may utilize contrasting architectural metal 

panels or accents; 

iv. Not to exceed the proposed total of 175 room as stated in the application. 

Any increase beyond this total will require approval from the Board of 

Commissioner; 

  
2. The application of green infrastructure (bioswales/biorention, etc) in combination of 

water quality retention ponds, will require implementation to minimize the negative 

effects of imperviousness and stormwater runoff to the water quality of Lake Oconee. 

The Georgia Stormwater Manual will be applied to the project under review. The 

manual’s water quality template will be used to assess the various water quality BMP 

options.  

  

3. Provide at least one 3-inch caliper tree per 3 parking spaces. Trees shall be placed in tree 

islands within the footprint of the parking lot. Location of trees shall be determined by 

the county during the site development review (LDP phase). Provide two – 3-inch caliper 

trees per 100 feet on the shoulder of all roadways within the development. Trees to be 

placed on both sides of all internal roads. Specific location of the trees adjacent to the 

internal roads to be determined by the county during the site development review 

587



process. These tree plantings shall not preclude the developer from installing additional 

vegetation as he/she deems appropriate. 

  
4. Provide a 25-foot-wide densely planted landscape buffer along the property line on Doug 

Lane and where the property abuts residential parcels on Collis Marina Road. The 

additional plantings shall provide a 75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape 

plan and species to be approved during the development review phase. 

  
5. Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road. Emergency exit shall not be paved. 

“Grass Crete” or similar product shall be used as the surface treatment for this access. A 

removable bollard (s) or similar barrier shall be used with only emergency services being 

provided entryway   

  
6. Preserve a 20’ non-buildable strip along the Collis Road frontage measured from edge 

of right-of-way.  The purpose of this condition is for future county acquisition as right-

of-way. 

  
7. A minimum of 65 feet building setback from Lake Oconee will be required. This includes 

all structures and stormwater management facilities. Walkways/paths and boat docks are 

excluded from this setback requirement.   

  

8. Development shall have only one (1) vehicular access. Access shall be from Collis Road. 

  

9. Map 104, parcel 030, map 104 parcel 032, map 104 parcel 032001, map 104, parcel 033 

and map 104 B, parcel 001, must be combined and cannot be used or sold as a standalone 

parcel.    

 

10. This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as 

stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 16, 2020 at 6:30 P.M., in the 

Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 
The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

588



The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

589


	Top
	1.	060420 P&Z Call to Order
	2.	060420 P&Z Attendance
	3.	060420 P&Z Rules of Procedures
	4.	060420 P&Z Minutes
	3-5-20 Minutes Draft

	5.	060420 P&Z Jimmy O'Dell
	6-4-20 MAP
	ODellVariance
	119B183LV
	119B183ZOOM
	FutureLandUse119B183
	O'Dell SR

	6.	060420 P&Z Garry & Nina Lassiter
	6-4-20 MAP
	LassiterVariance
	096A008LV
	096A008ZOOM
	FutureLandUse096A008
	Lassiter SR

	7.	060420 P&Z Gregory Leepow, agent for Kim Anderson
	6-4-20 MAP
	AndersonVariance
	112B003LV
	112B003ZOOM
	FutureLandUse112B003
	Anderson SR

	8.	060420 P&Z Kevin & Kristy Slaughter
	6-4-20 MAP
	SlaughterVariance
	Slaughter.1
	Slaughter.2
	110B105LV
	110B105ZOOM
	FutureLandUse110B105
	Slaughter SR

	9.	060420 P&Z Mark Smith, agent for Mary Wooten
	6-4-20 MAP
	WootenVariance
	Wooten.1
	104B012LV
	104B012ZOOM
	FutureLandUse104B012
	Wooten SR

	10.	060420 P&Z Mark Smith, agent for Duke Gibbs
	6-4-20 MAP
	GibbsVariance
	Gibbs.1
	104B011ZOOM
	104B011LV
	FutureLandUse104B011
	Gibbs SR

	11.	060420 P&Z Jim Brown, agent for Wondal Perry
	6-4-20 MAP
	PerryVariance
	Perry.1
	122A064LV
	122A064ZOOM
	FutureLandUse122A064
	Perry SR

	12.	060420 P&Z Jason Sells, Interfor U.S. Inc.
	6-4-20 MAP
	InterforVariance
	Interfor Withdrawal without Prejudice
	059019LV
	059019ZOOM
	FutureLandUse059019
	Interfor SR

	13.	060420 P&Z Vincent Richardson
	6-4-20 MAP
	RichardsonVariance
	055A011LV
	055A011ZOOM
	FutureLandUse055A011
	Richardson SR

	14.	060420 P&Z Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek Holdings LLC
	6-4-20 MAP
	CollisRdDocs
	Collis104030
	104030 SR

	15.	060420 P&Z Howard McMichael, agent for Lick Creek Holding's LLC
	6-4-20 MAP
	Collis104032001
	104032001 SR

	16.	060420 P&Z Howard McMichael, agent for Mallard's Overlook, LLC
	6-4-20 MAP
	Collis104032
	104032 SR

	17.	060420 P&Z Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek Holdings LLC
	6-4-20 MAP
	Collis104033
	104033 SR

	18.	060420 P&Z Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC
	6-4-20 MAP
	Collis104B011
	104B001 SR

	Bottom

